
MINUTES 
April 13, 2015 

5:30 P.M. 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: 
D. Sterner, J. Waltman, D. Reed, M. Goodman-Hinnershitz, S. Marmarou 
  
OTHERS PRESENT: 
L. Kelleher, S. Katzenmoyer, C. Younger, C. Snyder, R. Johnson, D. Cituk 
 
The Committee of the Whole meeting was called to order at 5:36 pm by Mr. Waltman. 
 
I. Administrative Manual Update 
Ms. Snyder distributed a draft table of contents.  She gave a brief background of the work 
group and stated that they have a deadline of May 4 to provide a manual.  She stated that as 
the first draft will not be complete the work group will continue and provide updated manuals 
every six months until the manual is complete.   
 
Ms. Snyder stated that she plans to provide copies of all policies to Council for their review 
and comment before they are included in the manual.   
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned “on and off boarding”.  Ms. Snyder explained that this will be the 
policy on new employee orientation and on processing employees who are leaving. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that the manual will be very comprehensive.  She expressed 
the belief that six months is not realistic.  She noted the need to add a disclaimer to the first 
draft of the manual that it is not complete.  Ms. Snyder agreed. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that it would be a disservice to the public if the disclaimer is 
not included. 
 
Mr. Acosta, Mr. Lloyd and Mr. Denbowski arrived at this time. 
 

 

COMMITTEE of the WHOLE 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

1 



Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that this is a good starting point.  He stated that there will be 
many gray financial areas.  He stated that financial policy and control remain in Council 
control.  He commended the work of the group. 
 
Ms. Snyder stated that she is aware of this need.  She stated that she intends to reference the 
Administrative Code in many sections of the manual. 
 
II. Reading iRequest Presentation 
Mr. Lloyd stated that Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz is an active user of the system.  He explained 
that the system has been live since January 2 and that there has been good feedback both 
internally and externally.  He stated that use continues to increase and there have been 
approximately 4,000 requests made to date.  He stated that the City is proactively addressing 
issues. 
 
Mr. Lloyd explained that there will be a system upgrade in the Customer Service Center (CSC) 
soon which will require additional training.  He stated that new request types continue to be 
added to the system and that reports are available.  He explained that the item with the most 
use is missed trash and recycling pick-ups. 
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned if the system could be used for police matters.  Mr. Lloyd stated 
that the only police matter at this time is reporting abandoned vehicles. 
 
Ms. Kelleher suggested that reporting large vehicles in neighborhoods be added as a request 
type.  Mr. Lloyd agreed and requested that Council contact him with any other suggestions. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that she currently reports issues through iRequest and also 
alerts Council staff for follow up.  She stated that on several requests, iRequest marks the issue 
complete but that the issue is really not resolved.  Mr. Lloyd stated that this can happen 
depending on the issue and that he is working to clarify this for the user. 
 
Mr. Waltman stated that notice to utilities for utility street cuts should not be closed before the 
utility resolves the problem .  The request should continue to be tracked and the utility should 
be reporting back and communicating with the City.  He stated that this should be a good 
management tool to address the root causes of City issues.  He suggested a monthly review of 
the top ten issues to work on solutions to prevent the complaints.   
 
Mr. Lloyd explained that SRs are no longer logged into Hansen for complaint follow up.  He 
stated that this is sometimes why iRequest will call an issue complete when it is not resolved.  
IRequest completes the item when it is transferred to Hansen for additional follow up. 
 
Mr. Waltman questioned the affect this change has on Hansen overall.  Mr. Lloyd stated that 
the SR processing is the only affect on Hansen. 
 

2 



Mr. Waltman noted the need to integrate the two systems to prevent the closed/not closed 
issue. 
 
Mr. Lloyd left the meeting at this time. 
 
III. River Road Extension Update 
Ms. Snyder explained that the route is being redesigned to lower the impact to residential 
areas.  She stated that the City has contracted with McCormick Taylor but that the project is 
already nine months behind schedule.  She stated that she has spoken with them and that 
there are three issues which could cause additional delays. 
 

1. Impact on historic districts – the Queen Anne federal historic district is in this area.  She 
noted the need to show that there is no historic disruption or there could be a 2-3 year 
delay.  She stated that the traffic pattern will avoid this area wherever possible. 

2. Hazardous waste issues – the Windsor and Ritter playground area is contaminated.  
The assessment is complete and the City will work with the School District. 

3. Right of way issues 
 
Mr. Marmarou suggested that the contamination issue at Windsor and Ritter may have been 
addressed when the City turned this property over to the School District.  Ms. Kelleher stated 
that she will begin researching this issue.  Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz suggested that the deed 
also be researched. 
 
Mr. Waltman noted the high amount (approximately $1.2 million) for this engineering work.  
Mr. Johnson explained that the right of way and environmental issues increased the cost of the 
project. 
 
IV. Agenda Review 
Council reviewed this evening’s agenda including the following: 
 

• Resolution promoting Sean Hart to 1st Deputy Chief 
 
Ms. Snyder explained that there will be a retirement causing an opening. 
 

• Ordinance regulating immigration assistance services provided by notary public 
businesses and individuals 

 
Mr. Waltman questioned if there were many unscrupulous businesses taking advantage of 
people.  Mr. Acosta stated that there are only a few.  He stated that these regulations require 
that you disclose that as a notary public you are not an attorney.  He stated that he is working 
with the State Attorney General to speak in Reading on this issue and to provide information 
to notary publics.  He stated that Mr. Cortez has been invited to participate but that he has not 
yet responded. 

3 



 
Mr. Waltman stated that those needing immigration services live in fear.  He questioned what 
resources would be given to them.  Mr. Acosta stated that the Berks County Bar Association is 
already a resource and he is working with the Hispanic Center to promote using the services 
of the Bar Association. 
 
Mr. Waltman agreed with the need to post a disclaimer at notary public’s offices about they’re 
not being attorneys.  He suggested that the posting also include the contact information for the 
Bar Association. 
 
Mr. Marmarou agreed with the need for this regulation and the town meeting.  He suggested 
that the information be provided in languages other than Spanish.  Mr. Acosta agreed and 
stated that he is already working on obtaining translators in other languages.  He expressed 
the belief that not all notaries are bad people doing bad work.  He stated that there are a few 
who lie that must face the consequences.  He noted the need to stop the abuse of those in need. 
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned if the town meeting would be advertised.  Mr. Acosta stated that it 
will be.  He stated that the City will not have “Notary Police” but that it will be reaching out to 
all notaries at multi-service establishments. 
 

• Ordinance adding parking kiosks and electronic payment for parking meters and 
allowing the Parking Authority to establish parking rates 

 
Mr. Acosta stated that this ordinance is being introduced this evening but that it will not be 
considered for final passage until after Council and the Parking Authority meet.   
 

• Ordinance increasing the number of food vendors 
 
Ms. Reed stated that both DID and the Main Street Board recommends this increase.  She 
explained that the City allows 15 food vendors are this time and that this ordinance would 
increase the number to 20.   
 
Ms. Snyder explained that the City had 18 good applicants this year and that they do not wish 
to turn any away. 
 
Mr. Acosta explained that in Puerto Rico and some other countries, many food establishments 
are moving into carts because operating costs are lower.  He stated that this hurts other 
business owners in the area and that the City is full of carts. 
 
Mr. Waltman questioned where the 15 carts are currently located.  Ms. Reed stated that they 
are assigned a location in the downtown. 
 

4 



Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that 20 food carts are not needed.  He stated that some of the 
current carts look questionable. 
 
Ms. Reed suggested meeting with DID and Main Street on this issue. 
 
Mr. Acosta stated that there are much lower costs associated with operating a cart versus 
operating a business.   
 
Ms. Reed suggested that Property Maintenance also be included in the meeting.  She stated 
that in the past she was anti-cart but that she has changed her mind.  She noted the need to 
closely regulate them. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that she has some experience with the cost of restaurant 
equipment.  She stated that opening a cart is much less expensive.  She stated that this does not 
give incentive to restaurants to stay open.  She stated that a proliferation of carts will affect 
downtown restaurants. 
 
Mr. Waltman noted the need for the City to also re-examine cart regulations.  He described a 
card table in a bus stop selling wares.  He expressed the belief that more carts will reduce 
restaurant business. 
 
Mr. Acosta agreed to meet with others on this issue. 
 
Mr. Sterner suggested that DID also survey downtown businesses for their input on this issue.   
 
Ms. Reed suggested that the City also examine the difference between food trucks and food 
carts. 
 

• Ordinance suspending Code of Ethics section 12 Campaign Finance and 
• Ordinance transferring funds from the Contingency Fund to the Board of Ethics 

 
Mr. Acosta stated that there may be a large increase in the number of complaints filed based 
on candidates not following the Campaign Finance guidelines.  He stated that the Code 
amendment was based on the potential State Election Code amendment which was not passed. 
 
Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that this law will not hold up to challenge as State law takes 
precedence.   
 
Mr. Acosta noted the need for the body to discuss this issue.  He expressed the belief that 
when one complaint is filed it will trigger many more.  He stated that he is proposing two 
ordinances – one that will suspend the Campaign Finance section of the Ethics Code and one 
which transfers funds to the Ethics Board.  He stated that the body can determine which path 
is taken. 

5 



 
Mr. Waltman suggested that providing an additional $250,000 to the Board of Ethics is baiting 
people to file complaints.   
 
Mr. Acosta stated that his intention is to force discussion. 
 
Mr. Waltman suggested repealing this section.  Mr. Acosta stated that he is suggesting 
suspension while he and staff have further discussions with Ed Stock.  He noted the need to 
protect the City from liability. 
 
Mr. Waltman suggested that during the suspension period, the section also be analyzed to see 
if it has merit overall. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz stated that this is very poor timing.  She stated that as a candidate 
she would be cautious about addressing the issue at this time.  She stated that perceptions will 
be affected. 
 
Mr. Acosta stated that he is not a candidate at this time.  He stated that as Council President he 
is responsible to protect the City. 
 
Ms. Reed stated that she does not support suspending this section.  She expressed the belief 
that it gives the perception of favoritism.  She stated that there was time to address this issue 
during non-election years.  She questioned why it is being brought forward at this time. 
 
Mr. Waltman agreed that it would not look good to address the issue now.  He requested an 
opinion from Mr. Younger about whether this is in violation of State Election law.  He stated 
that conversation is speculation until the issue has been researched. 
 
Mr. Younger stated that he has done some preliminary research.  He suggested that the 
ordinances be introduced at this time and he will have an opinion to Council before they are 
eligible for final passage. 
 
Mr. Waltman expressed the belief that addressing this issue now may expose the City to 
additional risk. 
 
Mr. Marmarou questioned who filed a complaint.  Ms. Katzenmoyer explained that if a 
complaint has been filed, the information is confidential.  There is no way to determine if a 
complaint has been filed, and if it has, who filed. 
 
Ms. Goodman-Hinnershitz expressed the belief that many candidates don’t understand the 
provisions.  She noted the need to educate candidates. 
 
Mr. Acosta requested the opinion from Mr. Younger within the next week. 

6 



 
• Resolution increasing the rate of pay for Pam Hoffman 

 
Mr. Acosta stated that a resolution was before Council for a different amount.  Ms. Snyder 
stated that Ms. Hoffman is a part time employee so rather than setting an annual salary, the 
hourly rate was increased.  She stated that both the Police Chief and HR recommend this rate 
of pay.  Mr. Cituk agreed with this approach. 
 
Mr. Acosta questioned if Ms. Hoffman was eligible for City benefits.  Ms. Snyder stated that 
she is not.   
 

• Resolution adding campaign expense reports and statements filed by candidates and 
political committees to the City Record Retention Schedule 

 
Mr. Acosta stated that this is a housekeeping issue to provide guidance for the document 
retention period.  He stated that the resolution may be moot depending on the action taken by 
Council regarding this section of the Code of Ethics.  He stated that not all candidates have 
submitted the necessary forms.  He stated that once this issue is resolved, reminder letters will 
be sent to all candidates. 
 
V. 4th & Penn 
Mr. Acosta suggested that Council meet for a snack at Maria’s.  He suggested that next week’s 
committee meetings begin at 6 pm to allow time. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:52 pm. 
 

Respectfully Submitted by 
Linda A. Kelleher, CMC, City Clerk 

 
 
 

7 


